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_on behalf of YourEstates-SM

22 September 2022 14:48




To:

I )2 es; Creaner, James; Fitzpatrick, Paddy; Garland, Terry; Gilmour, Trevor;
Glennon, Frankie; Gordon, Harry; Haire, Jonny; Hamill, Darren; Hamilton, Jim;
Hamilton, Megan; Harpur, Alan; Hoey, Don; Kearns, James; Kelly, lan; Larmour,
Stephen; Lennon, Liam; Luney, Alan; McCartan, MaireadT; McCartney, Danny,
McKeown, Paul; Roche, Donal; Shaw, Aidan; Stanfield, Mark; Toner, Colm; Whittley,
Alex: Wilson, lan: Close, Terence; Dougherty, Joanna; Gannon, Jonathon; Hall,
Declan: Johnston, Steven; McCook, Shaun; McKee, Victoria; Ravey, Jonny; Taylor,
Kevin; Horisk, Damian; Keery, Nigel; McCracken, George; Toal, Patrick; Metcalfe, Alan

Subject: Notice to Staff

Dear Colleagues

Management of Trust Items of Heritage, Commemorative and/or Artistic Interest

Please note that any request for alteration, removal, relocation, disposal of commemorative items in or on Trust
property must not be actioned without prior review by Estates SMT and subsequent approval by the Trust’s
Executive Team.

Similarly, management permission must be sought for actions in respect of items of art and/or of heritage.

Regards

Alan Metcalfe
Co-Director, Estates



From: _

Sent: 04 August 2022 12:58

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Subject: RE: Plague Investigation Outcomes
Attachments: Disciplinary Procedure.pdf

Hi Alan

See section 6.1

Reiards

From: Metcafe, Alan

Sent: 04 August 2022 10:02

Subject: RE: Plaque Investigation Outcomes

Can you send me the policy that counselling sits under?
Thanks,

Alan

Sent: uly :
Subject: RE: Plague Investigation Qutcomes
Hi Alan,

| feel that in this particuiar incident It would maybe be counselling, however if there are wider issues with the staff
member then would be informal capability.

From: Metcalte, Alan [

Sent: 28 July 2022 11:50
To: I

Subject: RE: Plaque Investigation Outcomes
Hi

Have you a view on this?

Thanks,

Alan



From: Metcalfe, Alan
Sent: 27 July 2022 09:01

To: I

Subject: RE: Plaque Investigation Qutcomes

i had taken it as informal capability but happy to take your specialist recommendation on that.
Thanks,

Alan

rrorn:

Sent: 27 July 2022 08:56
To: Metcalfe, Alan
Subject: FW: Plaque Investigation Outcomes

Hi Alan,

Can you confirm if one of the staff members will be commencing informal capability, or if this will be addressed as
counselling under the Disciplinary procedure?

Many Thanks

From: N

Sent: 27 July 2022 08:07

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Subject: RE: Plagque Investigation Outcomes

Hi Alan,

The attached letters are standard templates so are find to be issued. Just a note the HR contact number on the first

letter should be_

if you could send me copies of any final letters ance they are issued

Many Thanks

From: Metcate, an I

Sent: 26 July 2022 09:44
To:
Subject: Plaque Investigation Outcomes

Please find attached draft correspondence for your review prior to issue:

» Invitation to meeting at which outcomes will be advised
e Letter confirming Verbal Warning
e Letter confirming Informal Capability outcome

Please review and amend/confirm that these are appropriate so | can proceed.
2



Thanks,

Alan

Alan Metcalfe
Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...
Leading Supporting Improving

Feedback on our service to yourestates@belfasttrust. hscni.nel

| Belfast Health and
" Social Care Trust

caring supporting improving together
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INTRODUCTION

This procedure is designed to help and encourage all employees to achieve and
maintain appropriate standards of conduct, performance and behaviour. The aim of
the procedure is to ensure:

« The Trust can operate effectively as an organisation.

« Disciplinary action taken is fair, appropriate and consistent and all who are
involved in the process are treated with dignity and respect

« Managers, employees and their representatives are aware of their rights and
obligations in matters relating to disciplinary and appeals procedure.

This Procedure applies to all Trust staff. It should be noted that in relation to Medical
and Dental staff issues of general/professional misconduct are dealt with under this
procedure. Further relevant procedures are contained in circular HSS (TC8) 6/2005
“Maintaining High Professional Standards in the Modern HPSS — a framework for the
handling of concerns about doctors and dentists employed in the HPSS”.

This disciplinary procedure should be read in conjunction with the Trust's Disciplinary
Rules, which are set out in Appendix 1 of this Procedure.

Issues of competence and job performance will be dealt with under the Trust's
Capability Procedure.

GUIDANCE AND DEFINITIONS
"Trust Employee" is anyone employed by the Trust.

"Investigating Officer" is any person authorised to carry out an investigation into
alleged breaches of discipline to establish the facts of the case.

“Presenting Officer” is usually the investigating officer and presents the evidence to
the Disciplinary Panel

"Employee Representative" is any employee of the Trust who is an accredited
representative of a trade union, professional organisation or staff organisation or a
full time official of any of the above organisations or a fellow Trust employee. Legal
Representation will not be permitted at any stage of this Disciplinary Procedure.



"Disciplinary Panel” is the person or persons authorised to take disciplinary action.

"Misconduct" is a breach of discipline which is considered potentially serious
enough to warrant recourse to formal disciplinary action (please refer to Disciplinary
Rules).

"Gross Misconduct” is a serious breach of discipline which effectively destroys the
employment relationship, and/or confidence which the Trust must have in an
employee or brings the Trust into disrepute (please refer to Disciplinary Rules).

PRINCIPLES
The following general principles are applicable to all disciplinary cases:

Employees are directed by their contract of employment to ensure they familiarise
themselves with these procedures and the consequences of breaching the Trust's
Disciplinary Rules

In cases where an investigation is necessary, disciplinary action will not be taken
against an employee until such an investigation is completed. However, the Trust
reserves the right to proceed with disciplinary action where an employee fails to co-
operate with an investigation.

Where a case is being investigated under this Disciplinary Procedure, the employee
will be provided with a copy of this procedure as soon as possible. At every stage in
the procedure the employee will be advised of the nature of the complaint, and will be
given the opportunity to state their case before any decision is made.

At all stages during the disciplinary procedure, the employee will have the right to be
accompanied and/or represented by an employee representative.

No employee will be dismissed for a first breach of discipline except in the case of
gross misconduct where the disciplinary action may be summary dismissal.

An employee will have the right to appeal against any disciplinary action imposed.

In deciding upon appropriate disciplinary action, consideration will be given to the
nature of the offence, any mitigating circumstances and previous good conduct.

The Trust will collect information from relevant witnesses. Trust employees who are
withesses to alleged misconduct will be required to give evidence and may be

required to attend disciplinary meetings and/or hearings.

At all stages disciplinary proceedings will be completed as quickly as practicable.
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Any disciplinary action will be appropriate to the nature of the proven misconduct.
ARRANGEMENTS FOR MEETINGS/HEARINGS

Employees are expected to participate fully with the disciplinary process. If a Trust
employee cannot attend a meeting/hearing through circumstances outside her/his
control and unforeseeable at the time the meeting/hearing was arranged they must
notify the HR Department and provide reasons. The Trust will arrange one further
meeting/hearing. Failure to attend this rearranged meeting/hearing may result in the
disciplinary process continuing in their absence based on the information available.

ACTION IN PARTICULAR CASES

Disciplinary action in the case_of an employee representative, who is an

redited representative of a Tr nion, Professi rganisation or Staff

Organisati

Although normal disciplinary standards apply to the conduct of an employee
representative, no disciplinary action beyond the informal stage should be taken until
the matter has been discussed with a full-time official of the employee's trade union,
professional organisation or staff association.

Police enquiries, legal proceedings, caution or a conviction relating to a criminal
charge shall not be regarded as necessarily constituting either a reason for
disciplinary action or a reason for not pursuing disciplinary action. Consideration
must be given as to the extent to which the offence alleged or committed is
connected with or is likely to adversely affect the employee's performance of duties,
calls into question the ability or fitness of the employee to perform his or her duties or
where it is considered that it could bring the Trust into disrepute. In situations where
a criminal case is pending or completed the Trust reserves its right to take internal
disciplinary action.

Trust's o make referrals

The Trust is required, where appropriate under the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups
(Northern Ireland) Order 2007, to make a referral if a person working with children
or vulnerable adults has been dismissed, would have been dismissed, or considered
for dismissal had he/she not resigned, or has been suspended, or transferred from a
Child Care or vulnerable adults position.



6.1

Further, the Trust has a duty to make referrals to relevant professional bodies e.g.
NMC, GMC, NI Social Care Council, HPC and also to the Police Service of Northern
Ireland (PSNI) in appropriate cases and share relevant information.

In cases of alleged theft, fraud or misappropriation of funds, action should include
consultation with the Director of Finance, DHSSPS and the PSNI as appropriate.

Suspension from Work

Management reserves the right to immediately suspend an employee with pay.
Precautionary suspension must be authorised by the appropriate senior manager or
suitable deputy.

The reason for suspension should be made clear to the employee and confirmed in
writing. When the reason for suspension is being conveyed to the employee, where
possible, he or she should be accompanied by an employee/trade union
representative. Suspension is not disciplinary action, and as a consequence carries
no right of appeal. The appropriate senior manager should consider other
alternatives, for example transfer of employee, restricted or alternative duties if
considered feasible and appropriate.

Any decision to precautionary suspend from work, restrict practice, or transfer
temporarily to other duties must be for the minimum necessary period of time. The
decision must be reviewed, by the appropriate senior manager, every 4 weeks.

DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

This section sets out the steps which may be taken following a breach of the Trust's
Disciplinary Rules

COUNSELLING AND INFORMAL WARNINGS

The manager has the discretion to address minor issues through either counselling
or the issue of an informal warning. At this informal stage matters are best
resolved directly by the employee and line manager concerned.

Counselling does not constitute formal disciplinary action. Counselling should be
conducted in a fair and reasonable manner and the line manager should ensure
that confidentiality is maintained. This should take the form of pointing out any
shortcomings of conduct or performance and encouraging improvement and may
include an agreed training or development plan. It is the line manager’s
responsibility to ensure that notes of the counselling meeting are shared with the
employee, are stored securely and that the situation is monitored. This counselling

does not in any way prevent the line manager from instigating formal disciplinary
_6-



action if appropriate. If the faults are repeated, or the conduct does not improve,
the formal disciplinary procedure may be instigated

The line manager has the discretion to issue an informal warning. If this is
applicable, the manager will follow these steps:

o Manager investigates matter

e Manager meets with employee

o Manager issues informal warning

» Informal warning is confirmed to employee in writing and is deleted from their
record after 6 months

» Employee has right to appeal to the next line manager

e Appeal request should be submitted within 7 working days

The right to be accompanied by an employee representative will apply throughout the
informal process.

In the event that issues cannot be resolved with counselling or informal warnings the
Formal Disciplinary Procedure should be invoked.

FORMAL DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

6.2

6.3

INVESTIGATION

The Investigating Officer is responsible for establishing the facts of the case. The
investigation will be conducted as quickly as is reasonable taking account of the
extent and seriousness of the allegations. The Investigating Officer should meet
with the employee who may be accompanied and/or represented by an employee
representative and ensure that they are given a copy of the procedure. The
Investigating Officer should explain the alleged misconduct to the employee. The
Investigating Officer should ensure that any witnesses are interviewed and that all
relevant documentation is examined before a decision is made on the appropriate
course of action,

It should be noted that, if an issue has already been investigated under another
agreed investigatory procedure and disciplinary action has been recommended, then
there is no requirement to reinvestigate under this Disciplinary Procedure.

HEARING

If it is considered that there is a case to be answered, the employee should be called
to attend a disciplinary hearing before the appropriate Disciplinary Panel. A copy of
this Disciplinary Procedure should accompany the letter advising of the hearing. The

.7.



employee should be informed in writing of the allegation and the right to be
represented. Any documentation intended for use by either party at the Disciplinary
Hearing should be exchanged no later than five working days prior to the hearing.

The Disciplinary Panel is made up of 2 managers at an appropriate level - Appendix 2
outlines the minimum level.

Where an employee’s professional competence/conduct is in question the Disciplinary
Panel may, if needed, invite a suitably qualified experienced person from the same
profession to attend the Hearing as an expert adviser. The adviser does not have a
decision-making role.

In cases of professional misconduct involving medical or dental staff, the Disciplinary
Panel must include a member who is medically qualified (in the case of doctors) or
dentally qualified (in the case of dentists) who is not currently employed by the Trust
(see Maintaining High Professional Standards in the Modern HPSS (Nov 2005)
Section Ill Para 1). The advice of the appropriate local representative body should
be sought.

The employee shall normally be present during the hearing of all the evidence put
before the Panel; however the employee may choose not to attend the hearing. It
should be made clear that the hearing will proceed in his or her absence. Any
submission by the employee in writing or by his or her representative will be
considered. The Trust reserves the right to proceed to hear a disciplinary case in
the absence of the employee where no adequate explanation is provided for the
employee’s absence.

Any witnesses required to attend the hearing should be granted the appropriate
time off from their work. The employee representative cannot be a witness or
potential witness to the disciplinary process.

At the Hearing, the case against the employee and the evidence should be detailed
by the presenting officer and the employee should set out his/her case and answer
the allegations.

Witnesses may be called by either party and can be questioned by the other party
and/or by the Disciplinary Panel. The presenting officer and the
employee/representative will have the opportunity to make a final submission to the
Disciplinary Panel at the end of the Hearing with the presenting officer going first.
The Disciplinary Panel has the right to recall any witnesses but both sides and their
representatives have the right to be present.



6.4

6.5

DISCIPLINARY DECISION

The Disciplinary Panel will review all the evidence presented before taking its
decision. The Disciplinary Panel will determine on a balance of probability whether
the allegations were or were not proven. Before deciding on the appropriate
disciplinary action, the Disciplinary Panel should consider any mitigating
circumstances put forward at the hearing and take account of the employee’s record.

The decision should be communicated in writing to the employee normally within 7
working days of the date of the hearing or as soon as reasonably practicable. In the
case of formal or final written warnings, the timescale of any sanction should be
specified. The employee should be advised of the consequences of further breaches
of discipline and informed of the right and method of appealing the decision.

In the case of dismissal, the employee should be advised that the decision of the
Disciplinary Panel will be fully implemented pending appeal.

The appeal hearing should be organised in a timescale which allows proper
representation to occur, consistent with principles of natural justice. In all
circumstances an appeal hearing shall be organised within 12 weeks of the original
hearing.

Pay pending appeal will only be paid in circumstances where management alone
have failed to convene an appeal hearing within the aforementioned timescale. In
this circumstance payment will be recommenced from the point in time that the
notice period ends.

Pay pending appeal will not apply in circumstances where the employee was
summarily dismissed.

DISCIPLINARY ACTION

The Disciplinary Panel may impose one or more of the following disciplinary
sanctions / actions

Formal Warning - a formal warning may be given following misconduct or where
misconduct is repeated after informal action has been taken. A formal warning will
remain on the employee's record for a period of one year. The warning should be
accompanied by advice to the employee on the consequence of any repetition or
continuance of the misconduct that has given rise to the disciplinary sanction / action.

Final Warning - a final warning may be given when the misconduct is considered
more serious or where there is a continuation of misconduct which has lead to

previous warnings and/or informal action. A final warning will remain on the
9.



employee's record for a period of 2 years. The warning should be accompanied by
advice to the employee on the consequence of any repetition or continuance of the
misconduct that has given rise to the disciplinary sanction/action.

Transfer and/or Downgrading - the Disciplinary Panel may decide that the most
appropriate course of action should be either transfer, downgrading or both. These
disciplinary actions may be imposed in addition to either a formal warning or a final
warning as appropriate.

Dismissal — Dismissal will apply in situations where previous warnings issued have
not produced the required improvement in standards or in some cases of Gross
Misconduct.

Summary Dismissal — in some cases where Gross Misconduct has been
established, an employee may be summarily dismissed i.e. without payment of
contractual or statutory notice.

NOTE: If the misconduct is proven the Disciplinary Panel may recommend that any
associated financial loss should be recouped from the employee. This should be
referred to the Director of Finance for further consideration.

DISCIPLINARY APPEALS

An employee wishing to appeal disciplinary action should write to the Director of
Human Resources stating the grounds of their appeal within 7 working days of
receipt of the letter containing the disciplinary decision. The appeal hearing will be
arranged as early as practicable and the employee will have the right to be
represented. The employee will normally receive 7 working days notice of the date of
the appeal hearing.

The Appeal Panel, will comprise 2 managers from the Trust who have had no
previous involvement in the case and who are normally at a more senior level than
the Disciplinary Panel. In professional misconduct appeals involving medical staff
and/or dentists, the Appeal Panel will comprise one additional medically/dentally
qualified panel member who is not employed by the Trust or has not been previously
involved in the disciplinary case. Where the employee's professional
competence/conduct is in question, the Appeal Panel may invite a suitably qualified
and experienced senior officer in the same profession from the trust or outside the
Trust to attend the hearing as an assessor. The assessor has no decision making
role. The Appeal Panel will permit additional evidence not available or provided at the
Disciplinary Hearing to be considered only if it is considered relevant to the original
allegation.

The Appeal hearing will be a full rehearing of the case.
- 10 -



The Appeal Panel will have the authority to confirm, set aside, or reduce the decision
of the Disciplinary Panel. It will not have the right to increase the decision of the
Disciplinary Panel. Where the decision of the Appeal Panel involves a variation of
the original disciplinary decision, it should state the reasons and any operative date.
The decision of the Appeal Panel is final and will be conveyed in writing to the
appellant within seven working after the hearing. In the event of delay a written
explanation will be provided.

In the event of reinstatement following an appeal the appropriate back payment will
be made.

REVIEW OF THE PROCEDURE

This procedure should be reviewed periodically in consultation with recognised staff
side representatives via the HSC (NI) Joint Negotiation Forum.

Signed on behalf of Trade Union Side Signed on behalf of Management

Anne Speed Damian McAlister
Joint Secretary Director of Human Resources & OD

This procedure is effective from 1% April 2015



APPENDIX 1 TRUST DISCIPLINARY RULES

In accordance with paragraph 1 of the Trust's Disciplinary Procedure, Disciplinary Rules are
set out below. Conduct is categorised under the headings of “Misconduct” and “Gross
Misconduct”. This list should not be regarded as exhaustive or exclusive but used
simply as a guide.

In determining the appropriate heading, managers are required to carefully consider the
circumstances and seriousness of the case.

MISCONDUCT

Listed below are examples of offences of misconduct, other than gross misconduct, which
may result in disciplinary action and/or counselling/informal warning in the light of the
circumstances of each case. Where misconduct is repeated this may lead to dismissal.

Inappropriate or unacceptable conduct or behaviour towards employees,
patients, residents, clients, relatives or members of the public.

Abuse of employment position and/or authority.

Absenteeism

Unauthorised Absence

Insubordination.

Poor Time-keeping.

Dishonesty.

Unsatisfactory Performance and Conduct.

Failure to adhere to contract of employment.

Failure to comply with the responsibilities and duties of employment
position,

Failure to comply with Trust Rules and Procedures, Policies and Practices.
Failure to declare outside Employment/Activities — Failure to declare any
outside activity which would impact on the full performance of contract of
employment.

Failure to conform with safety, hygiene, security rules and regulations

Misuse of Trust Resources- internet, e-mail, telephone etc (see Trust policies)
Misuse of Trust Property-neglect, damage, or loss of property, equipment or
records belonging to the Trust, clients, patients, residents or employees

Use of foul language.

Gambling on Trust Premises

Dangerous horseplay.

Discrimination, victimisation, harassment or bullying on any grounds

Breach of confidentiality.

Alcohol/Drugs misuse.

Being an accessory to a disciplinary offence

-12-



GROSS MISCONDUCT

The following are examples of Gross Misconduct offences which are serious breaches of
contractual terms which effectively destroy the employment relationship, and/or the
confidence which the Trust must have in an employee. Gross misconduct may warrant
summary dismissal without previous warnings.

Theft - Theft from the Trust, its employees, patients, clients, residents or the public
including other offences of dishonesty.

Fraud - Falsification of documentation or records pertaining to patients, clients, staff,
or other persons. Misrepresentation which results, or could result in financial gain
(e.g. applications for posts, pre-employment medical forms, time-sheets, clock-
cards, subsistence and expenses claims etc.)

Being under the influence or misuse of Alcohol or Drugs — Being under the
influence of alcohol, unauthorised consumption while on duty or during working
hours. Reporting for duty smelling of alcohol. Misuse of drugs e.g. through
misappropriation or being under the influence of drugs.

Breaches of safety, hygiene, security rules and regulations endangering one’s
own or another’s physical well-being or safety.

Issues of probity.

Physical violence / assault or other exceptionally offensive behaviour.
Criminal Conduct- including failure to notify the Trust of a criminal offence either
at work or outside of work. Consideration will be taken of criminal
conduct/convictions and relevance to the employee’s position.

Breaches of Confidentiality.

Discrimination, victimisation, harassment or bullying on any grounds

Serious Breaches of Trust Rules, Policies, Procedures and Practices
Malicious or vexatious allegations or intimidation against another employee.
Serious Insubordination.

lll-treatment or wilful neglect of patients, clients, residents.

Negligence.

Breaches of contract of employment and/or Professional Codes of Conduct.
Some outside Employment/Activities-Engaging in outside employment/activities
that would prevent the efficient performance of duties, adversely affect health, bring
into question loyalty and reliability or in any way weaken confidence in the Trust's
business. Engaging in outside employment when contracted to work for the Trust
unless otherwise agreed or where outside work is undertaken in competition with
the Trust.

Abuse of sick pay provisions.

Bringing the Trust into Disrepute.

Misuse or unauthorised use of Property. - Unauthorised use or remaoval of Trust
property. Damage caused maliciously or recklessly to property, equipment or
records belonging to the Trust, clients, patients, residents or employees

Misuse of Trust resources, including IT resources (see IT policies), or misuse
of Trust name.

Serious professional misconduct or negligence

Unauthorised sleeping on duty



APPENDIX 2 - PANELS FOR HEARINGS AND APPEALS

Misconduct

Hearing Appeal
Staff below 5" Level 5 Level 4
level
Staff at 5 Level Level 4 Level 3
Staff at 4" Level Level 3 Level 2
Staff at 3" Level Level 2 Level 2

Staff at 2™ Level

Level 1/ Level 2

Chair/ Level 1/
Level 2

Gross Misconduct

Hearing Appeal
Staff below 5 Level 5 Level 4
level
Staff at 5" Level Level 4 Level 3
Staff at 4" Level Level 3 Level 2
Staff at 3 Level Level 2 Level 2

Staff at 2™ Level

Level 1 /Level 2

Chair / Level 1/
Level 2

Level 1 — Chief Executive

Level 2 — Director

Level 3 — Assistant / Co-Director
l.evel 4 — Senior Manager
Level 5 — Service Manager
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From: I

Sent: 27 July 2022 08:07

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Subject: RE: Plaque Investigation Qutcomes
Hi Alan,

The attached letters are standard templates so are find to be issued. Just a note the HR cantact number on the first
letter should be

if you could send me copies of any final letters once they are issued

Many Thanks

From: Metcaife, Alan I

Sent; 26 July 2022 09:44

o

Subject: Plaque Investigation Outcomes

Please find attached draft correspondence for your review prior to issue:
e Invitation to meeting at which outcomes will be advised
[ ]
[ ]

Please review and amend/confirm that these are appropriate so | can proceed.

Thanks,

Aban

Alan Metcalfe
Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through..
Leading Supporting Improving

Feedback on our service to v01/restates@belfas(trust. hiscninet

ﬂ 0 ()

[EaZv e ther Cagwienye : L

HSC Values



Turner, Clark

From:

Sent: 11 July 2022 07:51

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Cc:

Subject: BHSCT Investigation Report final

Attachments: Investigation Report BHSCT Estates Services 110722 final.docx
Dear Alan

Please find attached the completed investigation report from the investigation team in respect of the involvement
of Estate Services staff in the incident at Belfast City Hospital on 15 January 2022

Thank you for all your help with this investigation process.

Kind regards




From: I

Sent: 04 July 2022 11:15

To:

Subject: RE: Investigation Report Draft 260622

Attachments: Capability Procedure.pdf; Investigation Report Estaes Draft 260622.docx
Hi Alan,

Apologies for not getting back to you sooner but | took some leave last week.

I have highlighted a couple of comments and would be happy to meet to discuss but I'm aware that [|Jjj'so
asked for input from BB v ho is the B7 in the team. -doesn’t work on Mondays but | can share this
draft with her and arrange a follow up meeting this week. When have you arranged to get back to ||| | i

| have attached a copy of the capability pelicy for your information. If you refer to para 5 of the introduction it
states that this procedure applies where there is a genuine lack of capability. | don’t think this applies|jjin these
circumstances and may be better addressed through the informal stage of the disciplinary policy as it states in the
disciplinary procedures that ‘counselling is an opportunity to paint out shortcomings of conduct or performance
encauraging improvement’ but perhaps we can discuss this in more detail when we meet with -

Kind regards,

From: Metcalfe, Alan

Sent: 29 June 2022 08:51

To:

Subject: FW: Investigation Report Draft 260622

Hi I,
['ve reviewed the attached and have no further comment {other than correcting the last section number).

Have you any comments or can | go back and confirm acceptance?

Let me know re hoth points above.
Thanks,

Alan

From:
Sent: 26 June 2022 20:43
To: Metcalfe, Alan <Alan.Metcalfe @helfastirust . hscni.net>

Cc: |

Su!ject: Investigation Report Dra! 260622
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Hi Alan

Please find attached draft. We would be grateful if you would check for factual accuracy before we finally submit.
We look forward to hearing

Kind regards



Turner, Clark

From; I

Sent: 20 May 2022 12:15

To: -

Cc: I | ctcalfe, Alan

Subject: Re: Investigation meeting nest week

Attachments: Letter - -— Invite to Meeting RE Investigation 20052022 final.doc

Thanks -

I will also be on holiday 30/5 - 3/6 and we will update again the following week.,
Have nice break next week.

Regards

On 20 May 2022, at 11:44, I
g

Can confirm that attached has been posted first class today

Regards

From:
Sent: 20 May 2022 10:58

To:
co: I \etcalfe, Alan
I

Subject: Re: Investigation meeting nest week

Hi [

It's best to issue the letter today if possible.

Could you amend to say that. ...facilitates for the virtual meeting will be confirmed early next week,
or any arrangements for a personal meeting, should this be your preference....

Many thanks

0n 20 Miay 2022, at 1041,

wrote:

v I

Unfortunately | would be unable to confirm this. | note that Alan returns on Monday
and may be able to answer that. Also, Alan may be better placed to advise of a
suitable location for meeting to take place in BCH if it is to be in person.

1



Are you happy to hold off until we receive input from Alan?

From:
Sent: 20 May 2022 10:40

To: [

Subject: RE: Investigation meeting nest week

Hi
Is _accustomed to using MT, have access to a computer and suitable
room?

If so, then please go ahead and issue.

Many thanks

rror: [

Sent: 20 May 2022 09:50

To: I

Subject: RE: Investigation meeting nest week

{ have drafted the attached. Can you let me know if you are happy for this to be
issued. | am off on leave next week so | have added in your email as a contact to
confirm attendance.

If happy | can arrange for this to be sent first class today

From:
Sent: 19 May 2022 15:37
To:
Cc: : Metcalfe, Alan

Subject: Investigation meeting nest week

Hi Niall
We have completed our 3 pianned meetings, but now feel we need to speak to-
as a potential witness in this matter.

Would it be possible for you to write to _ it would suit us to meet on
Monday 23 at 4pm. However, we understand this to be very short notice, and if
not suitable then we would suggest Friday 27" morning time, say 10.30am? If a
virtual meeting is not possible, then it is best that a personal meeting takes place at
the BCH site. Can | leave it to you to make arrangements?

Please call anytime if you need to clarify any of the above.

2



Kind regards



From: I

Sent: 20 May 2022 10:40

To: R

Cc: _ Metcalfe, Alan
Subject: RE; Investigation meeting nest week

Hi
ts [ 2 ccustomed to using MT, have access to a computer and suitable room?
If so, then please go ahead and issue.

Many thanks

From:
Sent: 20 May 2022 09:50
T

o: I
c.: I ' <2, -~

Subject: RE: Investigation meeting nest week
Hi [

| have drafted the attached. Can you let me know if you are happy for this to be issued. | am off on leave next week
50 | have added in your email as a cantact to confirm attendance,

If happy | can arrange for this to be sent first class today

|
erore:

Sent: 19 May 2022 15:37
To:
Cc:
Subject; Investigation meeting nest week

Hi I
We have completed our 3 planned meetings, but now feel we need to speak to_ as a potential witness in
this matter.

Metcatte, Ao

Would it be possible for you to write to_? It would suit us to meet on Monday 23™ at 4pm. However, we
understand this to be very short notice, and if not suitable then we would suggest Friday 27" morning time, say
10.30am? If a virtual meeting is not possible, then it is best that a personal meeting takes place at the BCH site. Can
[ leave it to you to make arrangements?

Please call anytime if you need to clarify any of the above.

Kind regards






From: ]

Sent: 19 May 2022 12:40
To: _; Metcalfe, Alan
Subject: RE: Team call today or tomorrow

Hi-and Alan

Please note [ am not now available tomorrow, Friday, between 2-2.45pm.

Regards

From: |

Sent: 19 May 2022 09:03

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Cc:

Subject: Team call today or tomorrow

Good morning, Alan,

and I would like a conversation with you if possible today or tomorrow following our meeting
yesterday- would you be free at 1.30pm today or if you can share your availability for tomorrow for a
half hour slot we can see what works for the three of us.
Many thanks

Very best wishes




From: _

Sent: 13 May 2022 08:45

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Subject: RE: Update to Investigation
Sensitivity: Confidential

Thanks Alan

From: Metcalfe, Alan
Sent: 13 May 2022 08:41
To:
Cc:
Subject: Update to Investigation
Sensitivity: Confidential

Please find attached an update in respect of the investigation.

Regards,

Atan

Alan Metcalfe
Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...
Leading Supporting Improving

Feedback on our service fo yourestates@belfasitrust.hscni.net
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From: Metcalfe, Alan

Sent: 13 May 2022 08:43

To:

Cc:

Subject: RE: FW; BCH Plaque Investigation

H
Thanks for this — letters now issued.

Kind Regards,

Alan

From :

Sent: 12 May 2022 12:18

To: Metcalfe, Alan
Ce:

Subject: Re: FW: BCH Plaque Investigation
Hi Alan

by way of update I would advise that -
- the investigating team are continuing to progress our work. We envisage that all planned meetings will
have completed by next week and we will be in a position to submit our report shortly afterwards.

Hopefully this is helptul to you.

Kind regards

------ Original Mcssage ------

From: "Metcalfe, Alan"

To:

Sent: Wednesday, 11 May, 22 At 10:59
Subject: FW: BCH Plaque Investigation

i

Would you mind giving me a short paragraph, by way of update, that T can include in letters to the three
interviewees?

Thanks,

Alan



From:
Sent: 11 May 2022 08:49
To: Metcalfe, Alan
Subject: RE: BCH Plaque Investigation

Hi Alan,

Following on from our 6 week update meeting — can ensure staff involved receive an update regarding how
the investigation is progressing? I bave attached a template letter that can be used.

Kind Regards

brom: et on [

Sent: 10 May 2022 11:33
To:
Subject: BCH Plaque Investigation

Just to advise, further to our recent discussion, that the investigation is now proceeding as originally
planned. I’ve spoken to -and advised him accordingly so he will arrange further interviews as
required.

Regards,
Alan

Alan Metcalfe

Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...
Leading Supporting Improving

Feedback on our service to yourestates@belfasttrust hscni.net

O G €

ke D}’ = Ealr g e S el Lo g

HS5C Vaiues




From:

Sent: 12 May 2022 12:18

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Cc:

Subject: Re: FW: BCH Plaque [nvestigation
Hi Alan

by way of update [ would advise that -
- the investigating team are continuing to progress our work. We envisage that all planned meetings will
have completed by next week and we will be in a position to submit our report shortly afterwards.

Hopefully this is helpful to you.

Kind regards

------ Original Message ------
From: "Metcalfe, Alan"
To:
Sent: Wednesday, 11 May, 22 At 10:59
Subject: FW: BCH Plaque Investigation

o

Would you mind giving me a short paragraph, by way of update, that I can include in letters to the three
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
the investigation is progressing? I have attached a template letter that can be used.

Kind Regards



From: Mectcalfe, Alan
Sent: 10 May 2022 11:33

To: I

Subject: BCH Plaque Investigation

Just to advise, further tM discussion, that the investigation is now proceeding as originally

planned. I’ve spoken to and advised him accordingly so he will arrange further interviews as
required.

Regards,
Alan

Alan Metcalfe

Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...
Leading Supporting Improving

Feedback on otir service to yourestates@belfasttrust.hscni.net
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caring supporting improving together
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From: -

Sent: 11 May 2022 17:02

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Cc:

Subject: Fwd: BCH Plaque Investigation

Attachments: Disciplinay 6 weekly review lettter to all parties [JJjdocx
Hi Alan

We’ve been waiting on|[|ffto confirm a meeting date next week. I’ll give him until morning then one
way or another suggest a couple of lines for you by then.

Reiards

Begin forwarded message:

From:
Date: 11 May 2022 at 11:06:38 BST
TO: " n
Ce:
Subject: Re: BCH Plaque Investigation

Hi Alan
Yes, I'm off site this morning but will have something for you later today.

Reiards

On 11 May 2022, at 11:00, Metcalfe, Alan
T -

Would you mind giving me a short paragraph, by way of update, that | can include in
letters to the three interviewees?

Thanks,

Alan

rrom

Sent: 11 May 2022 08:49

To: Metcalfe, Alan |

Subject: RE: BCH Plaque Investigation

Hi Alan,



Following on from aur 6 week update meeting — can ensure staff involved receive
an update regarding how the investigation is progressing? | have attached a
template letter that can be used.

Kind Regartls

brom: wietcate, van [

Sent: 10 May 2022 11:33

To:

Subject: BCH Plague Investigation

Just to advise, further to our recent discussion, that the investigation is now
proceeding as originally planned. I've spoken to|ffend advised him
accordingly so he will arrange further interviews as required.

Regards,

Aben

Alan Metcalfe
Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...
Leading Supporting Improving

Fecdback on our service to yourestates@hbelfasttrust hscninet
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From: I

Sent: 11 May 2022 08:31
To: Metcalfe, Alan
Subject: RE: BCH Plaque Investigation

Thanks for update Alan

Kind Regards

From: Wietcatfe, Alan [

Sent: 10 May 2022 11:33

To: I

Subject: BCH Plaque Investigation

Just to advise, further to our recent discussion, that the investigation is now proceeding as originally planned. I've
spoken to_and advised him accordingly so he will arrange further interviews as required.

Regards,

Ao

Alan Metcalfe
Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...
Leading Supporting Improving

Feedback on our service to yourestates@belfastirust. hseni.net
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From: - |

Sent: 14 April 2022 12:34

To: wetcaite, Alor; I
Cc: I

Subject: Re: FW: Significant Event Audit

Thanks Alan

------ Original Message ------

From: "Metcalfe. Alan" I

Ce:
Sent: Thursday, 14 Apr, 22 At 12:23
Subject: FW: Significant Event Audit

Please see below for information.

Kind Regards,

Alan

From: Metcalfe, Alan

Sent: 14 April 2022 12:19

To:

Cec: Horisk, Damian _
]

Subject: RE: Significant Event Audit

The Independent Investigation is being undertaken under the Trust Disciplinary Policy and as such is a
separate process from the Significant Event Audit (SEA).

Information from the SEA has been shared with the Investigating officers as part of their investigation but
the SEA report will not be finalised or released until after the current investigation has been completed. The
rationale for this is to protect the integrity of the investigation and all parties involved.

From: |

Sent: 12 April 2022 14:02



To: Horisk, Damian
Cc: Metcalfe, Alan
Subject: RE: Significant Event Audit

Hi Damien
Any word on the below? We were told we’d receive a copy of the final report.

Also can you confirm if the current investigation is a completely new process, and if the investigating
officers have/will have sight of the SEA report.

Thanks

From: Horisk, Damian

Sent: 25 March 2022 14:23

To:

Subject: RE: Significant Event Audit

i [

The final report hasn’t been approved and released by Maurcen yet.
"]l forward as soon as available.

Regards

Damian

From:

Sent: 25 March 2022 12:25

To: Horisk, Damian

Subject: RE: Significant Event Audit

Hi Damian

Could you please forward a copy of the final report relaling to the recent SEA, for my records.

Many thanks

From:
Sent: 27 January 2022 1257

To: I
Subject: Significant Event Audit
Importance: High

peo [N

Re Significant Event Audit



As you will be aware, a plaque was recently removed from the Belfast City Hospital.
I have been asked to undertake a Significant Event Audit in respect of the removal of the plaque.

The purpose of the Audit is to determine the facts in respect of the event and to identify any learning arising
from it.

I have asked-to set up a meeting to discuss this with you. Accompanying me at the meeting will be
Damian Horisk.

Should you wish to bring a Staff Side Representative or colleague to this meeting you are welcome to do so.
Regards,
Alan

Alan Metcalfe

Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...

Leading Supporting Improving

Feedback on our service to yourestates@belfastirust. hscni.net
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From: I

Sent: 14 April 2022 11:27

To: Metcalfe, Alan

Subject: RE: BHSCT Investigation
Hi Alan,

Apologies unsure if you have spoken with [ JJllagain regarding this. My line manage Jllllichased this up for me
yesterday with her and the advice remains that the SEA report should not be shared until investigation has
cancluded.

Regards

From: Metcalfe, Alan I

Sent: 13 April 2022 08:42
To:
Subject: RE: BHSCT Investigation

Thanks — I'll also raise it. I'm conscious of the time which has elapsed.
Regards,

Alan

From:
Sent: 13 April 2022 08:41

To: Metcalfe, Alan
c I

Subject: RE: BHSCT Investigation
Hi Alan,

I have queried this again with senior manager as | know they had previously advised on this. | have not received a
response as yet so will chase up again and let you know ASAP

Thanks

From: Metcalfe, Alan

Sent: 13 April 2022 08:39
To: I
ce:

Subject: RE: BHSCT Investigation

| have now received requests from both ||l and i} for a copy of the SEA. They have also asked if the
report has been shared with the investigating team.



Can you advise on both paints so | can respond.
Thanks,

Alan

From: Metcalfe, Alan
Sent: 28 March 2022 14:27

Subject: BHSCT Investigation

Folks — just to confirm that | have now advised all three staff members of the investigation and letters have been
issued accordingly {by email).

B - both-and- have enquired about getting copies of the report from the Significant Event Audit.
They have been advised that the report has not been released yet.-had previously suggested that we hold
this until the disciplinary investigation is completed. Can you check if this is still HRs' advice as we are likely to be
challenged by Union reps to provide copies {fyi the content of the report was shared verbally with all three during
the SEA process but the document was not shared in hard copy).

Regards,

At

Alan Metcalfe
Co-Director Estates Services

Estates EXCELLENCE through...
Leading Supporting Improving

Feadback on our service to yourestates@belfasttrust. hscninet
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
From; Metcalfe, Alan I

Sent: 13 April 2022 08:39
To: I
cc: |

Subject: RE: BHSCT Investigation

! have now received requests from both - and - for a copy of the SEA, They have also asked if the
report has been shared with the investigating team.

Can you advise on both points so | can respond.
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
issued accordingly (by email).

I - both I - I have enquired about getting copies of the report from the Significant Event Audit.
They have been advised that the report has not been released yet. had previously suggested that we hold
this until the disciplinary investigation is completed. Can you check if this is still HRs" advice as we are likely to be

challenged by Union reps to provide copies (fyi the content of the report was shared verbally with all three during
the SEA process but the document was not shared in hard copy).

Regards,

Abar

Alan Metcalfe



From: I

Sent: 23 May 2022 08:31

To:

Cc: Metcalfe, Alan
Subject: Re: Investigation

Hello -

Thanks for your response, a personal meeting is fine.
We will advise you shortly of the arrangements for the meeting.

Kind regards

wrote:

Hi regarding the meeting requested on the 27 th I would prefer to have a meeting
in person

Yours sincerely




~, Belfast Health and
.. Social Care Trust
caring supporting improving toget@

12 April 2024

Strictly Private & Confidential

| am writing to request you to attend a meeting on 27 May 2022 @ 10:30, Virtually
via MS Teams (an invitation will be sent you to join on confirmation of your
availability) in relation to an ongoing investigation that has been commissioned by
Mr. Alan Metcalfe

The purpose of the meeting will be to discuss the ongoing investigation.

You may be accompanied by your Trade Union or Staff Association Representative if
you so wish. You may instead choose to be accompanied by a work colleague.

| nfirm | will be attending this hearing by email at
Please let me know if you require any special
arrangements, or alternatively if you would like to arrange this meeting in person.

Facilitates for the virtual meeting will be confirmed early next week, or any
arrangements for a personal meeting, should this be your preference

Yours sincerely

(Investigating Officers)

Enc. Disciplinary Policy
cc.



